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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-33346

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

Delaware 2C-199461¢
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporatic (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No
1275 Park East Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Islar 02895
(Zip Code)

(Address of Principal Executive Office

(401) 671-6550
(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Qi

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of each class Name of Exchange on which registered
Common Stock, Par Value $.000 Nasdaq Capital Market
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock Nasdaq Capital Market
Units consisting of Common Stock and Two Warrant Nasdaq Capital Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registranaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Hlleof the Securities Act. YE&]

Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Sectidror Section 15(d) of the Act. YEO

NO

NO
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Indicate by check mark whether the registr(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the registrang wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsife past 90 days. YE& NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeleffinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104H.

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated fi non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "accelerated filarge accelerated filer* and "smaller reportirgnpany" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filedl Accelerated filerO Non-accelerated fileEd Smaller reporting companigl
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

Indicate by check mark whether registiara shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 offkehange Act). YE] NO

The aggregate market value of the votimdy @on-voting common equity held by non-affiliatesnputed by reference to the price at
which the common equity was sold, or the averageahd asked price of such common equity, as of Dbee 31, 2008 approximately
$21,400,000.

The number of shares outstanding of thestent's common stock as of March 25, 2009 wa4(¥5782.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statemfartthe 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders aiporated by reference into Part Il of this
Report.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K containsaddition to historical information, forward-loakj statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%€Be forward-looking statements are based on mare&ag®s current expectations and are
subject to a number of factors and uncertaintidschvcould cause actual results to differ materifithm those described in such statements.
We caution investors that actual results or busigesditions may differ materially from those pigd or suggested in forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors including not limited to, the risk factors describedtble We cannot assure you that we have
identified all the factors that create uncertamtiReaders should not place undue reliance on fdreaking statements.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business
Background

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$Pbf Reorganization, dated as of September B @@@quisition Agreement"), KBL
Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il ("KBL"), and its why owned subsidiary, Sll Acquisition Corp. ("Adgition Sub"), consummated a
transaction by which (i) Summer Infant, Inc. ("SWas merged with and into Acquisition Sub anddli)of the outstanding capital stock of
each of Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIE") andr®ner Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and, collectively it SIl and SIE, the "Targets") was
acquired directly by KBL. As used in this Repohte term "Summer" includes each of the Targets. gl in this Report, the term "Company"
means the registrant on a post-acquisition basigvi@rch 7, 2007, the securities of the Company cenwued listing on the Nasdaq Capital
Market under the symbols SUMR (common stock), SUMRVYdrrants) and SUMRU (units).

Effective upon closing, the Company chaniggdame to Summer Infant, Inc. and Sl changeddme to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.
Thus, the Company is now a holding company callethi8er Infant, Inc. operating though its wholly-owrsubsidiaries, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe, Limited, Sumrdant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC") and Summer Infant Asital.

General

We are a designer, marketer, and distritoftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnessipcts which are sold principally to large
North American and UK retailers. We currently hawere than 80 proprietary products in various prodategories including nurse
audio/video monitors, safety gates, durable batkdyets, bed rails, related health and safety prisgdbooster and potty seats, bouncers and a
product line of soft goods/bedding. In additiore Basic Comfort and Kiddopotamus acquisitions adtieds such as infant sleep positioners,
head supports, portable changing pads, as wellidgry and feeding accessories. Our products &tepgmarily to U.S. retailers including
Babies R Us, Target, KMart, Buy Buy Baby, Meijegl® Depot (Burlington Coat Factory) and Wal-Mart.

We maintain through SIE a sales, marketing distribution office in England, which servidhe United Kingdom and other parts of
Europe. SIE's largest customers are Mothercares Roys, Argos, and Tesco. In 2008, Summer Infa®A}) including international sales
managed out of the U.S., accounted for approxim®@¥ of revenue, SIC accounted for approximatéty dnd SIE accounted for
approximately 6%.

We maintain through SIA a product developtnengineering and quality assurance office, wioedrsees the production of all product
lines made in China.
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Strategy

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer)

. new products (at existing and new custome

. new mass merchant retail customers;

. new distribution channels (food and drug chaingepclubs, home centers, web-based retailers);
. new geographies (international expansit

. new product categories; and

. acquisitions.

We have been able to grow our annual resghistorically through a combination of all of gigove factors. Each year, we have been
to expand the number of products in our main digtidbn channel, mass merchant retailers, and hHawveadded new customers each year.
Therefore, even without new product introductioms,could grow our business by simply selling mdrewr existing product line to existing
customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshifisexisting customers), to expand our sales ofipcts from our soft goods product line,
and to expand in the UK and in other geographioreg(including Japan, Mexico and Australia, amotiters). In addition, there are a number
of potential acquisition candidates that could besped in order to obtain new innovative producesy product categories, new retail
customers or new sales territories. There are appately 400 active juvenile product companieswbfch approximately 300 have less than
$10 million in sales. In addition, there are vasguoduct categories that we do not currently cdmpe including car seats, high chairs,
walkers, nursery care, and other categories. Welawkyto develop our own products in these categoor attempt to gain entrance into these
categories through acquisitions.

Products

We sell over eighty proprietary producstdd in order of dollar volume importance: (i) rerssaudio/video monitors (approximately 27%
of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2003)aby gates (approximately 17% of net saledlie year ended December 31, 2008),
(iii) durable bath products (approximately 11% ef sales for the year ended December 31, 2008)€ rails, booster seats, potty seats, soft
goods, bouncers and other products (approximately df net sales for the year ended December 38)200

New product development teams have alsn bs&blished to enter several new categoriesd8 28d 2009. One team is focused on play
yards, swings, high chairs and other "baby gea@gmies. The other team is focused on the infafttgoods market comprised mainly
bedding, blankets, home furnishings, layette aridbsdh products.

Product Development and Design

Our management believes that product dewedmt is a critical element of our strategy anctess to date. Our product strategy is to
produce proprietary products that provide distiretienefits, are visually appealing, provide commece and will appeal to the mid-tier and
upper-tier buyers. Our U.S. retailers are stratdlyienotivated to buy innovative, uparket products. Our main product development effar
located at our Rhode Island corporate office, beialgo have
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development efforts in China (six person sourcéiggtronics and QA team), Colorado, South Cardfiiva person soft goods design office)
and England (two-person team focused on meetinghKEU standards and market demands).

Suppliers and Manufacturing

Except for certain injection-molded batbgupotty seats and gates, which are manufactaréeiU.S., substantially all of our other
products are manufactured in southern China avffi@st near Hong Kong. We use many different suppliend therefore we are not dependent
on any one manufacturer. We own our own molds. [8#vides us with a local sourcing presence andlii@ty to oversee quality, electronic
engineering and other issues that may arise dprioguction.

Transportation of Chin@ade goods to our warehouses typically takes tiorémur weeks, depending on the location of thealvause. W
maintain our inventory at warehouses located inf@ala, Rhode Island, Canada, and the United KamgdMost of our customers pick up tr
goods at regional warehouses. We also use UPSthedanmmon carriers to arrange shipments to cuat®mho request such arrangements,
primarily smaller retailers and specialty stores.

We use several manufacturers in the UiSodio injection molded products that account fameen 15% and 20% of our annual net sales.
Sales and Marketing

Our sales are primarily derived from thie s juvenile health, safety and wellness prodacts are recognized upon transfer of title of
product to our customers. Our products are markateldsold through several distribution channelfuitiag chain retailers, specialty retailers
and direct to consumers.

Sales are made utilizing standard credit$eof 30 to 60 days. We generally accept retunhg for defective merchandise.
Competition

The juvenile health, safety and wellneshkigtry has many participants, none of which havaidant market share, though certain
companies have disproportionate strength in cesagments. Our largest direct competitors are Daodklstries (Safety 1st and Cosco brands),
Evenflo (Evenflo, Gerry, and Snugli brands), FisReice (part of Mattel, Inc.), The First Years (dsidiary of RC2 Corporation) and Graco (a
subsidiary of Newell Rubbermaid). In addition, warpete in certain of our product lines with a numiifesmaller private companies, such as
KidCo, Inc. and Munchkin.

The primary methods of competition in thdustry consist of product innovation, brand posiig, quality, price and other factors suc
timely distribution. Our competitive strengths indé our experienced product development staffability to develop new products, brand
positioning, relationships with major retailersdahe quality and pricing of our products.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, li@nand trade secrets to protect our intellectugdgnty. Our patents currently in effect include
various design features related to bedrails, indaats, bouncers, and potty chairs, with seveharqiatents pending for monitors, baby swings,
and other items. The patents expire at variousstiover the next 20 years. We also have licenseeaggets relating to the use of patented
technology owned by third parties in certain of ptmducts. We are the sole owner of the molds irsethnufacturing our products.

3
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Customers

Our top 15 customers in North America dmel Wnited Kingdom together comprised over 90% ofsales in fiscal 2008. Some of these
customers include Babies R Us, Target, K-Mart, TRyds Canada, and Wal-Mart in North America, anthanUnited Kingdom, Mothercare
and Argos.

Seasonality

There are not significant variations ins®el demand for our products. Sales to our ret@fomers are generally higher in the time fri
when retailers take initial shipments of new pradu€hese orders usually incorporate enough praduit each store plus additional amounts
to be kept at the customer's distribution centhe fiming of these initial shipments varies by onstr depending on when they finalize store
layouts for the upcoming year, and whether theeeaay mid-year product introductions.

Geographic Regions

Approximately 92% of our sales in fiscaD80wvere made in North America, primarily the Uni@tes (88%) and Canada (4%). The
remaining 8% of sales in fiscal 2008 were madé@inited Kingdom and all other international acdsu

Facilities

We are headquartered in a 52,000 squatehtmiquarters/warehouse facility in Woonsocketydehisland. This facility provides for
24,000 square feet of office space and a 40,008redfoot warehouse. We are the owner of this fgcili

We have a 36 month, 3,750 square foot l&asaffice space in South Carolina, which expire2010. We have a 24 month lease for o
space in Hong Kong, which expires in 2009, as agkh 60 month lease for office space in the Urkieddom, which expires in 2012.

We maintain inventory at leased warehous€alifornia (two warehouses which total approxieiya 170,000 square feet) and Rhode
Island (approximately 72,000 square feet), Color@gproximately 90,000 square feet), Canada (apmately 31,000 square feet) and the
United Kingdom (approximately 16,000 square feEle leases expire at various times between 2002@h8.

Regulatory Matters

We obtain all necessary regulatory agemgy@vals for each of our products. In the U.S.s¢hepprovals may include, among others, one
or more of the Consumer Product Safety CommissiBREC"), the American Society of Test Methods ("A87, the Juvenile Products
Manufacturing Association ("JPMA"), the Federal Goonications Commission ("FCC") and the Food andgDxdministration ("FDA"). We
conduct our own internal testing, which utilize§¥@eseeable use and abuse" testing method aresigred to subject each product to the
"worst case scenario.” Our products are also fretlyigested by independent government certified lab

Insurance

We carry a product liability insurance pylthat provides us with $9,000,000 of liabilityvevage with a minimal deductible. We consult
with our insurers to ascertain appropriate liapitiboverage for our product mix. We anticipate imsiag our insurance coverage in the future in
line with our expanding sales and product breadth.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we employed d tfta70 people, 95 of whom work in the headquarterd distribution centers in Rhode
Island. Our employees are not covered by a collediargaining agreement. We consider our emplogiagions to be good.

4
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Available Information

We maintain our corporate websitevatw.summerinfant.coend we make available, free of charge, throughwieissite our annual repi
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, carreports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosertefhat we file with or furnish to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, as soon asn@aly practicable after we electronically file thaaterial with, or furnish it to, the SEC.
Information on our website is not part of this rep@his report includes all material informatiolmoaut us that is included on our website and is
otherwise required to be included in this report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below are not the oisks we face. Additional risks that we do not kebw of or that we currently think are
immaterial may also impair our business operatitfremy of the events or circumstances describetiérfollowing risks actually occur, our
business, financial condition or results of operadicould be materially adversely affected. In ¢hosses, the trading price of our common
stock could decline.

The concentration of our business with a base of retail customers that make no binding long-term commitments means that economic
difficulties or changesin the purchasing policies of our major customers could have a significant impact on our business.

A number of large, retail customers accdant majority of our net sales. Customers thategated more than 10% of net sales for the
year ended December 31, 2008 were Toys R Us (48%tcfales), and Target (10% of net sales). Beaafube concentration of our busine
with these customers, and because we have nodomgcontracts with these customers, our succesndsmn our customers' willingness to
purchase and provide shelf space for our prodéet@dverse change in our relationship with anywflarge customers or a change in the
financial viability of any of these customers coaliiversely affect our results of operations andrfaial condition.

Our ability to grow and compete will be harmed if we do not successfully satisfy consumer preferences, enhance existing products, develop
and introduce new products, and achieve market acceptance of those products.

Our business and operating results depangelly upon the appeal of our products. Consunefepnces, particularly among parents, who
are the end purchasers of our products, are cahstdranging. Our success will, in large part, depen our ability to identify emerging trends
in the health, safety and wellness marketplace dasthn products that address consumer demandrane gafe and cost effective. Our proc
offerings compete with those of many other compgmgany of which are much larger and enjoy broadand recognition and significant
distribution channel relationships, which meang tha market position is always at risk. Our agitib maintain and increase our current me
share will depend upon our ability to anticipatarfes in consumer preferences and satisfy thefergmees, enhance existing products,
develop and introduce new products and establidigeow distribution channels for these productsl altimately achieve market acceptance
of these products.

We are dependent on key personnel, and our ability to grow and compete in our industry will be harmed if we do not retain the continued
services of our key personnel, or we fail to identify, hire, and retain additional qualified personnel.

We are dependent on the efforts of our mameent team, and the loss of services of membeygrahanagement team, each of whom has
substantial experience in the juvenile health,tgadad wellness markets, could have an adverseteaffeour business. If any members of
management leave,
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their departure could have an adverse effect oroperations and could adversely affect our abittgesign new products and to maintain and
grow the distribution channels for our products.

In addition, if our operations continuegimw in a manner consistent with our historicalvgtorates, it will be necessary for us to attract
and retain additional qualified personnel. The reafkr qualified and talented product developmerspnnel in the consumer goods market,
and the juvenile health, safety and wellness prisdonarket specifically is intensely competitivewié are unable to attract or retain qualified
personnel as needed, the growth of our operationlsl e slowed or hampered. However, we believeSoenmer Infant's compensation
including salary, performance-based bonuses, antt stward programs provides incentives that arepetitive within our industry.

I ntellectual property claims relating to our products could increase our costs and adversely affect our business.

We have, from time to time, received clamhslleged infringement of patents relating totaier of our products, and we may face similar
claims in the future. These claims relate to allepatent infringement and are primarily the resfihewly issued patents that were not in force
when we initially brought the subject products tarket. The defense of intellectual property clagas be costly and time consuming, even in
circumstances where the claim is without merit. Mé&y be required to pay substantial damages oeswdtit costs in order to resolve these
types of claims. In addition, these claims coulderially harm our brand name, reputation and opmnat

We rely on foreign suppliersin China to manufacture the majority of our products, and any adverse changein our relationship with our
suppliers could harm our business.

We rely on numerous third-party suppliexsalted in China for the manufacture of most ofmaducts. While we believe that alternative
suppliers could be located if required, our prodigatrcing could be affected if any of these supplé® not continue to manufacture our
products in required quantities or at all, or vilike required levels of quality. We enter into pash orders with our foreign suppliers and dc
enter into any long term contracts. In additioffficlilties encountered by these suppliers, suclirasaccident, natural disasters, outbreaks of
contagious diseases, or political unrest, coultdradlisrupt production at the affected locaticresulting in delay or cancellation of orders. /
of these events could result in delayed deliveriesas of our products, causing reduced sales amd twaour reputation and brand name.

In particular, in 2008, our suppliers base€hina faced significant additional costs, assult of raw materials shortages, the further
strengthening of the Chinese currency ("RMB") verthe US dollar, rising labor rates and increasesergy prices. While we anticipate be
able to pass on some portion of these increasdd twoeur customers, continued cost pressures pauppliers will inevitably be passed on to
us

Increasesin the cost of materials or labor used to manufacture our products could decrease our profitability and therefore negatively impact
our business and financial condition.

Because our products are manufacturedity-plarty suppliers, we do not directly purchase tiaterials used in the manufacture of our
products. However, the prices paid by us to thepelgers could increase if raw materials, laborothrer costs increase. If we cannot pass these
increases along to our customers, our profitability be adversely affected.

Because we rely on foreign suppliers and we sell in to foreign markets, we are subject to numerous risks associated with international
business that could increase our costs or disrupt the supply of our products, resulting in a negative impact on our business and financial
condition.

Our international operations subject usgks, including:

. economic and political instability,
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. restrictive actions by foreign governments,

. greater difficulty enforcing intellectual propenights and weaker laws protecting intellectual gy rights,

. changes in import duties or import or export resiois,

. timely shipping of product and unloading of prodticbugh West Coast ports, as well as timely trdekvery to our
warehouses,

. complications complying with the laws and polici#ghe United States affecting the importation 0bds, including duties

quotas, and taxes, and

. complications in complying with trade and foreige taws.
Any of these events or circumstances cdiddipt the supply of our products or increaseexqrenses.
Product liability, product recalls, and other claims relating to the use of our products could increase our costs.

Because we sell infant and juvenile heal#tfiety and wellness products to consumers, wepiamuct liability risks relating to the use of
our products. We also must comply with a varietpafduct safety and product testing regulationsdfface a product liability claim or fail to
comply with these regulations, we may be subjecbsily litigations, damage awards, fines or setélet costs that exceed our insurance
coverage. We also would incur significant costsdannection with any product recall requirementserEif a product liability claim is without
merit, the claim could harm our reputation and dimeanagement's attention and resources from ainéss.

Competition in our markets could reduce our net sales and profitability.

We operate in highly competitive market®e ¥dmpete with several large domestic and fore@npanies and with other producers of
infant products. Many of our competitors have langgerating histories, greater brand recognitiow, greater financial, technical, marketing
and other resources than we have. In addition, e face competition from new participants in ourkess because the infant product indu
has limited barriers to entry. We experience pciampetition for our products, competition for sheglface at retailers and competition for
licenses, all of which may increase in the futliregee cannot compete successfully in the future,ret sales and profitability will likely
decline.

We may experience difficulties in integrating strategic acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we inteagtirsue acquisitions that are consistent withnoission and enable us to leverage our
competitive strengths. The integration of acquirethpanies and their operations into our operatiowslves a number of risks, including:

. the acquired business may experience losses thit adversely affect our profitability;

. unanticipated costs relating to the integratioa@juired businesses may increase our expe

. possible failure to obtain any necessary conserttsettransfer of licenses or other agreementiseoftquired compan

. possible failure to maintain customer, licensor atieer relationships after the closing of the teation of the acquired compa
. difficulties in achieving planned c-savings and synergies may increase our expensEsmase our net sals

. diversion of management's attention could impagirthbility to effectively manage our business apiens; and

7
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. unanticipated management or operational problentialatities may adversely affect our profitabilignd financial condition.

In addition, any future acquisitions oréstments may result in:

. issuances of dilutive equity securities, which rhaysold at a discount to market pri

. use of significant amounts of cash;

. the incurrence of debt;

. the assumption of significant liabilitie

. unfavorable financing terms;

. large one-time expenses; and

. the creation of intangible assets, including godidtfie write-down of which may result in significant charges&rnings

Our debt covenants may limit our ability to complete acquisitions, incur debt, make investments, sell assets, merge or complete other
significant transactions.

Our line of credit includes provisions tipédce limitations on a number of our activitiex;luding our ability to:

. incur additional debt;

. create liens on our assets or make guarar

. make certain investments or loa

. pay dividends; or

. dispose of or sell assets or enter into a mergsinaifar transaction.

We could issue additional common stock, which might dilute the book value of our common stock.

Our board of directors has authority, withaction or vote of our stockholders in most cagessue all or a part of our authorized but
unissued shares. These stock issuances could =anadrice that reflects a discount from the ttwement trading price of our common stock.
In addition, to raise capital, we may need to issermurities that are convertible into or exchan@gefdy a significant amount of our common
stock. These issuances would dilute current shidetsd ownership percentage which would have theeebf reducing their influence on
matters on which stockholders vote, and could eitbe book value of Summer Infant common stockcl8tolders may incur additional
dilution if holders of stock options, whether curtlg outstanding or subsequently granted, exetisi options, or if warrant holders exercise
their warrants to purchase shares of Summer laf@mimon stock.

Asa " thinly-traded" stock, large sales can place downward pressure on our stock price.

Our common stock experiences periods wheaould be considered "thinly traded." Finance seartions resulting in a large amount of
newly issued shares that become readily tradablether events that cause current stockholdersltsisares, could place downward pressure
on the trading price of our stock. In addition, thek of a robust resale market may require a $tolder to sell a large number of shares in
increments over time to mitigate any adverse impéatte sales on the market price of our stock.

8
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Anti-takeover provisionsin our organizational documents and Delaware law may limit the ability of our stockholdersto control our policies
and effect a change of control of our company and may prevent attempts by our stockholdersto replace or remove our current management,
which may not be in your best interests.

There are provisions in our certificatéraforporation and bylaws that may discourage altparty from making a proposal to acquire us,
even if some of our stockholders might considemqttugosal to be in their best interests, and mayegnt attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management. Thesgsfons include the following:

. our certificate of incorporation provides for thiedasses of directors with the term of office okarass expiring each year,
commonly referred to as a staggered board. By ptagstockholders from voting on the election aireathan one class of
directors at any annual meeting of stockholdeis,fgtovision may have the effect of keeping theeurmembers of our board
of directors in control for a longer period of tirtfean stockholders may desire;

. our certificate of incorporation authorizes our tebaf directors to issue shares of preferred swithout stockholder approv.
and to establish the preferences and rights opagferred stock issued, which would allow the bdarissue one or more clas
or series of preferred stock that could discouagdelay a tender offer or change in control; and

. our bylaws require advance written notice of staitr proposals and director nominatic

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203he Delaware General Corporation Law, whichgémeral, imposes restrictions upon
acquirers of 15% or more of our stock. Finally, bioard of directors may in the future adopt othetgrtive measures, such as a stockholder
rights plan, which could delay, deter or prevenhange of control.

The global economic downturn could result in a reduced demand for our products and increased volatility in our stock price.

Current uncertainty in global economic dtinds pose a risk to the overall economy as coresarand retailers may defer or choose not to
make purchases in response to tighter credit agdtive financial news, which could negatively affdemand for our products. Additionally,
due to the weak economic conditions and tightemedicenvironment, some of our retailers and distiors may not have the same purchasing
power, leading to lower purchases of our produmtpfacement into distribution channels. Conseduedémand for our products could be
materially different from expectations, which coulegatively affect our profitability and cause stock price to decline.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Iltem 2. Properties

We are headquartered in a 52,000 squatéhfaalquarters/warehouse facility in Woonsocketdehisland. This facility provides for
24,000 square feet of office space and a 28,008redoot warehouse. We are the owner of this fgcili

We have a 36 month, 3,750 square foot l&asaffice space in South Carolina, which expire2010. We have a 24 month lease for o
space in Hong Kong, which expires in 2009, as agkh 60 month lease for office space in the Urkieddom, which expires in 2012.

We maintain inventory at leased warehois€alifornia (approximately 170,000 square feetjaol includes two warehouses), Rhode
Island (approximately 72,000 square feet), Color@proximately 90,000 square), Canada (approxign8te000 square feet), and the United
Kingdom (approximately 16,000 square feet). Thessés expire at various times between 2009 and 2013
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
None.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of oaclsholders during the fourth quarter of the yeateshDecember 31, 2008.

PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Price Range of Common Stc

On March 7, 2007, our common stock, wagamd units commenced listing on the Nasdaq Cagiaket under the symbols "SUMR",
"SUMRW" and "SUMRU", respectively.

On March 17, 2008, we announced that effedflarch 28, 2008, the units will be separated itd component securities, consisting of
share of common stock and two warrants. As a resedfinning on March 28, 2008, the units ceasetirta

The high and low closing prices for our enam stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Méokehe periods indicated below were as
follows:

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20C
First Quarte! $4.9C $3.67
Second Quarte $4.8C $3.84
Third Quartel $4.7¢  $3.7¢
Fourth Quarte $4.5C $2.1C

Holders of Common Stor

As of March 14, 2009, there were approxetathirteen shareholders of record of our comntools Because shares of our common ¢
are held by depositaries, brokers and other nomjrthe number of beneficial holders of our shasesibstantially larger than the number of
record holders.

Dividend Policy

There have been no cash dividends dectarerir common stock since our company was form@ddénds are declared at the sole
discretion of our Board of Directors. Our intentigmot to declare cash dividends and retain ahdar our operations.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securi

On October 9, 2007, we made a tender tdfetl holders of our warrants to repurchase eaaframt for $1.00. The tender offer expired on
November 8, 2007. The total number of warrants Ipased in the tender offer was 14,766,047. The cumember of warrants outstanding a
the tender offer is 3,633,953.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
N/A

10




Table of Contents

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations (dolr amounts in thousands, except
share and per share data)

The information contained in this secti@s been derived from our consolidated financidestants and should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and related rintdsded elsewhere in this filing.

The following discussion is intended toistsis the assessment of significant changes amtisr related to our results of operations and
financial condition. This discussion and analy$isidd be read in conjunction with our consoliddiedncial statements and notes thereto
included herein. Our business has grown organidalsll of our markets. We derive our revenues ftbmsale of health, safety and wellness
products for infants and toddlers. Our revenueiiged by our ability to design and market desirgireducts, identify business opportunities
and secure new and renew existing distribution ihksn Our income from operations is derived from ahility to generate revenue and collect
cash in excess of labor and other costs of progidimr products and selling, general and adminisgatosts.

Company Overview

We are a designer, marketer, and distritoftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnesslpcts which are sold principally to large
North American and UK retailers. We currently hawere than 80 proprietary products in various prédategories including nurse
audio/video monitors, safety gates, durable babdycts, bed rails, infant thermometers, relatedthh@ad safety products, booster and potty
seats, bouncers and a product line of soft gooddibg.

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer);

. new products (at existing and new customers);

. new mass merchant retail customu

. new distribution channels (food and drug chaingepelubs, home centers, v-based retailers
. new geographies (international expansion); and

. new product categories.

We have has been able to grow our annuahrees historically through a combination of altlué above factors. Each year, we have been
able to expand the number of products in our matridution channel, mass merchant retailers, anelalso added new customers each year.
Therefore, even without new product introductioms,could grow our business by simply selling mdreuwr existing product line to existing
customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshifisexisting customers), expand our sales of petalfrom our soft goods product line, and
expand in the UK and in other geographic regionsl(iding Japan, Mexico and Australia, among othénsaddition, there are a number of
potential acquisition candidates that could be yenlsn order to obtain new innovative products, peaduct categories, new retail customers
or new sales territories. There are approximately dctive juvenile product companies, of which agpnately 300 have less than $10 million
in sales. In addition, there are various produtggaries that we do not currently compete in, idicig car seats, high chairs, walkers, nursery
care, and other categories. We may look
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to develop our own products in these categoriegtempt to gain entrance into these categoriesitfiracquisitions.

As we continue to grow through internatiatives and any future acquisitions, we will inadditional expenses. Two of the key areas in
which those increased expenses will likely occersales and product development. In order to gedesswe will likely hire additional sales
personnel to service new geographic territoriesygcexisting resources on specific parts of theddnStates market and retain product line
specialists to drive sales of new and existing potglin specific areas in which we believe we @adily increase sales. Product development
expenses will increase as we develop new prodoasisting and new categories.

If we were to acquire one or more compaagpart of our growth strategy, we would faceaasichallenges such as the integration of the
acquired companies' product lines, employees, miagkeequirements and information systems. Ongaifigstructure investment also may be
required to support realized growth, including exgliires with respect to upgraded and expandednrdton systems and enhancing our
management team.

Sales

Our revenues are primarily derived from shée of juvenile health, safety and wellness petgland are recognized upon transfer of titl
product to our customers. Our products are markéredigh several distribution channels includingiohretailers, specialty retailers and direct
to consumers.

A number of large, retail customers accauntajority of our net sales. Customers that geednaore than 10% of net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2008 were Toys R Us (48% of sechales), and Target (10% of such net salespide of the concentration of our
business with these customers, and because wenbdeag term contracts with these customers, occess depends on our customers'
willingness to purchase and provide shelf spacedomproducts.

Over 90% of sales are currently made taozasrs in North America, with the remaining salemprily made to customers in the UK.
Sales are made utilizing standard credit term9ab3b0 days. We generally accept returns onlydédective merchandise.

Cost of goods sold and other expenses

Our products are manufactured by thirdipsrtwith approximately 80-85% of the dollar vatfeproducts being manufactured in China
and the majority of the balance being manufactimede United States. Cost of goods sold primagiyresents purchases of finished products
from these third party manufacturers. The remaid@ur cost of goods sold includes duties on aeitaported items, freight-in from
suppliers and miscellaneous charges from contraaufiacturers. Substantially all of our purchasesmaade in US dollars; therefore, most of
this activity is not subject to currency fluctuatso If our suppliers experience increased raw rizdgetabor or other costs and pass along those
cost increases through higher prices for finisheadg, our cost of sales would increase, and textent we are unable to pass these price
increases along to our customers, our gross mangodd decrease.

Selling, general and administrative expernsénarily consist of payroll, insurance, professil fees, royalties, freight out to customers,
product development costs, advertising and marfgetipenses (including co-op advertising allowaraesegotiated with certain customers)
and sales commissions. Several of these itemsufitetvith sales, some are based on sales to partaistomers and others are based on sales
of particular products.

In particular, in 2008, our suppliers base@hina faced significant additional costs, assult of raw materials shortages, the further
strengthening of the Chinese currency ("RMB") verthe US
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dollar, rising labor rates and increases in eneriges. Additionally, Chinese suppliers were impddby Government imposed reductions on
tax refunds. While we anticipate being able to massome portion of these increased costs to @atomers, continued cost pressures on our
suppliers will inevitably be passed on to us; aligio recently we have experienced some stabilizatitimour orient suppliers.

There are not significant variations inse®l demand for our products. Sales to our retafomers are generally higher in the time fri
when retailers take initial shipments of new pradu€hese orders usually incorporate enough praduit each store plus additional amounts
to be kept at the customer's distribution centhe fiming of these initial shipments varies by oustr depending on when they finalize store
layouts for the upcoming year, and whether theeeaay mid-year product introductions.

Summary of critical accounting policies and estimags

This summary of our critical accountingipis is presented to assist in understanding onsalidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements and notes areseptations of our management, which is respan$ibltheir integrity and objectivity. The
accounting policies conform to accounting principdeenerally accepted in the United States of Amaaaitd have been consistently applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial stetets.

We make certain estimates and assumpti@isffect the reported amounts of assets anditiabiand the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses. The accounting policies describeahviemie those we consider critical in preparingfowancial statements. Some of these
policies include significant estimates made by nganaent using information available at the timedgbtmates were made. However, these
estimates could change materially if different infiation or assumptions were used.

Revenue recognitic

We follow the guidance of the Securitied &xchange Commission ("SEC") Staff Accounting Bl 104 for revenue recognition. In
general, we record revenue when all of the follgniccur: persuasive evidence of an arrangemertsepi®duct delivery has occurred, the
sales price to the customer is fixed or determimalpld collectability is reasonably assured. Satesexorded net of provisions for returns and
allowances, product placement fees, customer digs@nd other sales related discounts. We basestinrates for discounts, returns and
allowances on negotiated customer terms and hisiagkperience. These estimates are subject tabitiy, as actual deductions taken by
customers may be different from the estimates cmhr

Sales incentives or other consideratiorgily us to customers that are considered adjustroéthe selling price of its products, such as
allowances and product placement fees, are refleteeductions of revenue. Sales incentives amet gbnsideration that represent costs
incurred by us for assets or services received aadhe appearance of our products in a custoneditsal circular ad, are reflected as selling
and marketing expenses in the accompanying statsroéimcome.

Trade receivables

We carry our trade receivables at netzable value. On a periodic basis, we evaluateradetreceivables and establish an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on a history of past bat egense, collections and current credit conaltid’ he allowance is adjusted based on
actual write-offs that occur. We have a credit masge policy to protect against potential lossetougtated amounts from certain customers.
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We do not accrue interest on trade recédgatd\ receivable is considered past due if paymbate not been received within the credit
terms on the account, typically 60 days for mostamers.

We will turn an account over for collectiaround 120 days past due. Accounts are consideraallectible if no payments are received
to 90 days after they have been turned over fdectnbn.

Inventory Valuatior

Inventory is comprised of finished goods &nstated at the lower of cost, inclusive ofgrgiand duty, or market (net realizable value)
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Our mghousing costs are charged to expense as inclmkehtory write-downs are recorded for
damaged, obsolete or slow-moving inventory. Managerases estimates to record write-downs baset$ seview of inventory by product
category, including length of time on hand andmeates of future orders for each product. Changesmsumer preferences, as well as demand
for products, customer buying patterns and invgntoanagement could impact the inventory valuation.

Impairment of lon-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets

Longtved assets have been reviewed for impairmentareStatement of Financial Accounting Standaré A& No. 144, "Accountin
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived AsséfBhis Statement requires that an impairment bessecognized whenever the carrying
value of an asset exceeds the sum of the undisedwash flows expected to result from the use ardtéul disposition of that asset, exclud
future interest costs the entity would recognizamexpense when incurred. Goodwill and other gitdlea assets have been reviewed for
impairment based on SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill andegdthtangible Assets." Under this Statement, gotbdwid other intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, father tested at least annually for impairmene Tompany's management reviews for
indicators that might suggest an impairment loggctexist. Testing for impairment requires estirsatéexpected cash flows to be generated
from the use of the assets. Various uncertaintiefjding changes in consumer preference, deteidorén the political environment, continued
adverse conditions in the capital markets or chamggeneral economic conditions, could impactekygected cash flows to be generated by an
asset or group of assets. Intangible assets thatfivite useful lives are amortized over theirfuséves.

Allowance for doubtful account

The allowance for doubtful accounts repnésadjustments to customer trade accounts redeif@bamounts deemed uncollectible. The
allowance for doubtful accounts reduces gross tradeivables to their estimated net realizablea/aline Company's allowance is based on
managements' assessment of the business envirgroustumers' financial condition, historical trendgstomer payment practices, receivable
aging and customer disputes. The Company will cometito proactively review its credit risks and atljis customer terms to reflect the curn
environment.

Income taxe

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted tlowipions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 48"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109." FI8Igrovides detailed guidance for the financialestant recognition, measurem
and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recoghinghe financial statements in accordance witASRNo. 109. Tax positions must meet a
"more-likely-than-not" recognition threshold at téective date to be recognized upon the adopmfdfiN 48 and in subsequent periods. Upon
the adoption of FIN 48, we had no unrecognizedenefits.

Deferred income tax assets are adjusteiatuation allowance, if necessary, to recognizeré tax benefits only to the extent, based on
available evidence; it is "more-likely-than-not'chubenefits
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will be realized. We recognize interest and pees/tif any, related to uncertain tax positionselirsg, general and administrative expenses.

The tax years 2004 through 2007 remain @pexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich we operate. We expect no material
changes to unrecognized tax positions within the tveelve months.

Results of Operations

Summer Infant, Inc. (formerly KBL Healthcare Acquisition Corp. II)
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
(In thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C

Net sales $ 132,36¢ $ 68,111
Cost of goods sol 85,51« 42,35¢
Gross profil 46,85t 25,76
Operating expenses (including intere 39,57¢ 20,96¢
Income tax expens 2,37¢ 1,67¢
Net income $ 490: $ 3,11¢

The results of operations for the year érnidecember 31, 2007 represent the combined act¥iKBL Healthcare from January 1, 2007
through March 6, 2007 and the activity of Summéarhfrom March 6, 2007 through December 31, 201 Healthcare historically had no
sales or gross profit, while Summer Infant has Isatles and gross profit, in addition to other ndropeerating expenses. Therefore, the amc
in the two above periods cannot be compared inaningful fashion.

To give the reader some additional infoiorabn the performance of the underlying Summeaiihbperations, the following table
represents the results of the Summer Infant opgyatbmpany for the years ended December 31, 2002@0i7. This table is being presente
give the reader more information about the undegyierformance of the ongoing operating compangabge KBL Healthcare had no
operating business in 2007. The 2008 operatindtseisiclude Kiddopotamus and Basic Comfort fromitthespective acquisition dates of

April 18 " and March 38!, through December 31, 2008.
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
(In thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Net sales $132,36¢ 100.(% $80,517 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 85,51« 64.6% 50,037 62.1%
Gross Profil 46,85¢ 35.40 30,48( 37.%
SG&A expenses(e 34,03¢ 25.1% 22,45¢ 27.%
EBITDA(b) $ 12,81¢ 9.7% $ 8,02- 10.(%

€) Excluding depreciation, amortization, deal-reldiels, and Non-Cash stock option expense.

(b) See no-GAAP discussion below regarding the computatioBEBfTDA.
Year ended December 31, 2008 compared with yeaceDeécember 31, 2007

Net sales increased 64% from approxim&#8,517,000 in the year ended December 31, 208ppmoximately $132,369,000 for the y
ended December 31, 2008. This increase was priredtiibutable to increased distribution of exigtjproducts throughout our customer base,
introduction of new products, acquisitions, andangion into new customers. Kiddopotamus and Bagiof@Grt added approximately
$11,130,000 and $7,484,000 to net sales, respBctive

Gross profit increased 54% from approxiya$30,480,000 for the year ended December 31, 20@pproximately $46,855,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2008. This increase wamply attributable to the 64% increase in netsabdfset by increased cost of goods du
raw material increases and a change in product Thig.increase in raw materials costs and labor wassed along as cost increases, and t
extent we were unable to pass such price incredseg to our customers, our gross profit percenyage-over-year has decreased.

Selling, general and administrative experisereased from approximately $22,458,000 foryeéer ended December 31, 2008 to
approximately $34,039,000 for the year ended Deeer@h, 2008. This increase was primarily attriblegdb increased variable costs such as
co-op advertising allowances as a result of theisg@nt increase in sales. In addition, there weoeeased expenditures in product
development, headcount, professional fees, andhease operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generally fund our operations and wagldapital needs through cash generated from opasagéind borrowings under our credit
facility.

Our sales have increased significantly alierpast several years. For the year ended Dece3tp2003, net sales for the Summer Infant
Operating Companies were approximately $17,600,600the year ended December 31, 2008, net salesapproximately $132,369,000.
This sales growth has led to a substantial increma@rking capital requirements, specifically agnts receivable and inventory. The typical
cash flow cycle is as follows:

. Inventory is purchased to meet expected demandapbadety stock. Because the majority of our venidoe based in Asi
inventory takes from four to six weeks to arrivenfr Asia to the various distribution points we maintin the US, Canada and
the UK. Payment terms for these vendors are apmately 30- 60 days from the date the product shigpe Asia, therefore we
are generally paying for the product a short tirfterat is physically received in the US. The
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increased sales we have experienced result indsedelevels of inventory, and therefore an incréaiee amount of cash
required to fund our inventory level.

. Sales to customers generally have payment terr@8 days. The increased sales have resulted incegeise in the level
accounts receivable, and therefore have increhasednmount of cash required to fund working capital.

We have traditionally been able to fund imereased working capital through lines of credih banks.

The majority of our capital expenditures &or tools related to new product introductionse Wceive indications from retailers generally
around the middle of each year as to what prodhetsetailer will be taking into its product linerfthe upcoming year. Based on these
indications, we will then acquire the tools reqdite build the products. In most cases the paynfenthe tools are spread out over a three to
four month period.

For the year ended December 31, 2008,awt ased in operating activities totaled $16,000s Was due to the positive net income
generated during the year, plus non-cash chamgesworking capital increases (primarily accouateivable and inventory, which increased
due to the significant sales increase).

Net cash used in investing activities wagreximately $21,503,000 which primarily relateshe cash portion of the Basic Comfort and
Kiddopotamus acquisitions, in addition to year &bedcapital expenditures of approximately $3,863 &9d purchases of intangible assets
totaling $1,682,000.

Net cash provided by financing activitiesssapproximately $21,714,000 which relates to arsborrowed to fund increases in working
capital and the acquisitions of Basic Comfort anddépotamus.

Based on the above factors, the net castease for the year ended December 31, 2008 wasxamtely $783,000, resulting in a cash
balance of approximately $988,000 at December 3282

Summer believes that its cash on hand amémt banking facilities are sufficient to fund ¢ash requirements for at least the next
12 months. However, unforeseen circumstances, asisbftness in the retail industry or deterioratiothe business of a significant customer,
could create a situation where Summer cannot aetleskthe available lines of credit due to novimg sufficient assets or EBITDA. In
addition, there is no assurance that Summer widtra# of its bank covenants in the future, or titgtender will grant waivers if there are
covenant violations.

Summer's strategy for funding its busirg@iag forward is a combination of increased prdiiity, and if necessary, negotiation of
increased borrowing lines as required with traddidenders.

On April 10, 2008, Summer entered into tvewv three-year secured credit facilities (the "Légmeement") with Bank of America, N.A.,,
as Administrative Agent, and each of the finantiatitutions that is a signatory to the Loan Agream The Loan Agreement provides for a
$36,000,000 working capital revolving credit fagiland a $10,000,000 non-restoring acquisitionitfedility. The new credit facilities mature
on June 30, 2011. The acquisition credit faciliag lbeen utilized in its entirety as of June 30800

Summer and its subsidiaries, Summer InfdSA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe Limited, Summefiaht Asia Limited and Summer Infant
Canada, Limited are the borrowers under the Loareémgent. These credit facilities replaced Sumnpeits line of credit and are being used
principally to fund growth opportunities and for tking capital purposes.

Summer's ability to borrow under the Loagrédement is subject to its ongoing compliance @ittumber of financial and other covenants,
including the following (i) that Summer and its sidiaries maintain a net worth of $50,000,000 phessum of 50% of net income earned in
each fiscal year,
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(i) that Summer and its subsidiaries maintainteraf total funded debt to EBITDA of not greatbah 3.50:1.00, and (jii) that Summer and its
subsidiaries maintain a ratio of operating castvfio debt service of not less than 1.25:1.00. lditéah, if Summer's ratio of total funded debt
to EBITDA is greater than 3.25:1.00 as of Decen8igr2008, the total commitment amount under thekimgrcapital revolving credit facility
will reduce by $4,000,000 on March 31, 2009. Funtiare, if Summer's ratio of total funded debt tolHBA is greater than 3.25:1.00 for any
fiscal year, the agreegate amount that may be Wwedainder the Loan Agreement will be determineddfgrence to a borrowing base.

These credit facilities bear interest #bating rate based on a spread over LIBOR ranffimgy 150 basis points to 200 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of the Company's totadiéaihdebt to EBITDA. As of December 31, 2008, the om these credit facilities ranged
between 1.95% and 4.42%. In addition, these cfadilities have an unused line fee based on theeshamount of the credit facilities equal to
25 basis points.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoragents of default, including a cross default primvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the Loan Agreémesy be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatintnsmlvency and receivership, all outstanding oltigges become due and payable.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company hadagmately $39,676,000 outstanding of the totahodtted amount of $46,000,000. In
addition, the Company has $3,859,000 outstandind@toan related to the construction of the cappheadquarters.

The Company was in compliance with all cov@s as of December 31, 2008.
The following table summarizes our sigrafi€ contractual commitments at December 31, 2008:

Payment Due by Perioc

2012 anc

Contractual Obligations Total 2009 2010 2011 beyond
(In Thousands)

Line of credit/acquisition facilit $39,67¢ $1,337 $2,000 $36,34:
Estimated future interest payments on line of ¢ 3,158 1,262 1,267 631
Operating lease 4,79 1,707 1,45¢ 811 $ 817
Capital lease 397 21F 161 31
Construction loal 3,85¢ 10& 112 12¢ 3,522
Total contractual cash obligatio $51,88( $4,622 $4,99¢ $37,93¢ $4,33¢

Estimated future interest payments on mgr ¢f credit were based upon the interest rate$fect at December 31, 2008.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet gearents during either of the years ended Decenhe2(®8 and 2007.
Non-GAAP Discussion

In addition to our GAAP results, we alsedibse non-GAAP measures of our performance. EBIT&Adefined below, is an important
supplemental financial measure of our performahaeis not required by, or presented in accordavite GAAP. As used herein, EBITDA
represents net income (loss) before income taxiemrity interest in net income of affiliates, inést expense, and
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depreciation and amortization and non-cash stotbmexpense. Our management uses EBITDA as adialameasure to assess the ability of
our assets to generate cash sufficient to payast@®n our indebtedness, meet capital expenditdevarking capital requirements, and
otherwise meet our obligations as they become\digebelieve that the presentation of EBITDA providssful information regarding our
results of operations because it assists in amajyand benchmarking the performance and value ofasiness. We believe that EBITDA is
useful to stockholders as a measure of comparagieeating performance, as it is less susceptiblatiances in actual performance resulting
from depreciation and amortization and more reflecdf changes in pricing decisions, cost contaesld other factors that affect operating
performance.

EBITDA also is used by our management faitiple purposes, including:

. to calculate and support various coverage ratitis odr lenders

. to allow lenders to calculate total proceeds theydlling to loan to us based on our relative sgth compared to other
competitors; and

. to more accurately compare our operating performdirem period to period and company to companylioyieating difference
caused by variations in capital structures (whiflbca relative interest expense), tax positions amabrtization of intangibles.

Although we use EBITDA as a financial measio assess the performance of our business, dnematerial limitations to using a
measure such as EBITDA, including the difficultgasiated with using it as the sole measure to coenhe results of one company to another
and the inability to analyze significant items thaectly affect a company's net income (loss) erating income because it does not include
certain material costs, such as interest and taeegssary to operate its business. In additioncaloulation of EBITDA may not be consistent
with similarly titled measures of other companiad ahould be viewed in conjunction with measures #ne computed in accordance with
GAAP. Our management compensates for these limitatin considering EBITDA in conjunction with itealysis of other GAAP financial
measures, such as net income (loss).

The following table presents a reconcitintof EBITDA to net income, its most directly comglale GAAP financial measure, on a
historical basis, for the periods presented:

Reconciliation of Income before interest to unaudad EBITDA

Year Ended December 3

2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Income before intere: $ 9,33¢ $5,96:
Plus: depreciation and amortizati 2,90: 1,37¢
Plus: litigation and deal related expen 214 30E
Plus: noi-cash stock option expen 36C 37¢€
EBITDA, as definec $ 12,81¢ $ 8,02¢

The increase in EBITDA for the past yeas haen primarily the result of the sales increéisaishave occurred. Sales increased from
$80,500,000 in 2007 to $132,369,000 in 2008.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 @0d, ZEBITDA", as defined, includes the additionceftain litigation and deal-related
expenses that we believe to be nonrecurring.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASIN®G, "Fair Value Measurements.”" SFAS No. 157 dsfifair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally eqated accounting
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principles and expands disclosures about fair vadaasurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under otheuating pronouncements that require
permit fair value measurements and accordinglys s require any new fair value measurements. SRASL57 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company sbpAS 157 for its financial assets and liab#iteffective January 1, 2008.

In June 2006, the FASB issued InterpretalNo. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Esx—an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109" ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accourdifior uncertainty in income taxes recognized imapany's financial statements
accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Ineoiraxes." FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshaldl measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measuremeattak position taken or expected to be taken axaeturn. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. This wlapted effective January 1, 2007. As a result efitplementation of FIN 48, w
recognized no adjustments in uncertain tax benégof December 31, 2008, we have $0 of accruemtést related to uncertain tax positions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatemwielRinancial Accounting Standards No. 141(R), "fRess Combinations"”, or SFAS No. 141
(R). This statement establishes principles andirequents for how the acquirer of a business reasgand measures in its financial staterr
the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilitisstaned, and any non-controlling interest in theuaed. SFAS No. 141(R) also provides
guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwijuired in the business combination and detesnit®&t information to disclose to
enable users of the financial statements to evalhat nature and financial effects of the busiwessbination. The provisions of SFAS No. 141
(R) are effective for financial statements issuadfiscal years beginning after December 15, 200& Company will adopt this statement, as
applicable on January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatemielRinancial Accounting Standards No. 160, "Nomcolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements-An Amendment to AccountingeResh Bulletin ("ARB") No. 51", or SFAS No. 160. i§tstatement amends ARB
No. 51, "Consolidated Financial Statements"”, taldi&h accounting and reporting standards for tin-controlling interest in a subsidiary and
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This staat also amends certain of ARB No. 51's consatidgirocedures for consistency with the
requirements of SFAS No. 141(R). In addition, S 160 also includes expanded disclosure requingregarding interests of the parent
and its non-controlling interest. The provisionsS6TAS No. 160 are effective for financial statersaasued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company will adopt thiest@nt, as applicable, on January 1, 2009.

In February 2008, the FASB issued Staffittws("FSP") No. 157-1 and FSP No. FSP 157-2. N8P157-1 removes certain leasing
transactions from the scope of SFAS No. 157. FSP1N8-2 partially defers the effective date of SFA& 157 for one year for certain
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitieattare recognized at fair value on a nonrecurragjs Under FSP No. 157-2, the effective date
for non-financial assets and liabilities that a¥eagnized at the fair value on a nonrecurring bagide for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. FSP No. -2 is effective for the Company of January 1, 2008 Company is assessing the potential impacidabting
FSP No. 157-2, but does not believe that the adoptill have a significant impact on the Comparmgasolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. F-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intabtg Assets" ("FSP FAS 142-3"). FSP
FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be coresidae developing renewal or extension assumptisesi to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142)ddwill and Other Intangible Asseé{SFAS No. 142"). The intent of the position is to
improve the consistency between the useful lifarofecognized intangible asset under SFAS No. hdake period of expected cash flows
used to measure the fair value of the asset urldg&No. 141 (R). FSP FAS 142-3 is effective focéisyears beginning after December 15,
2008 and is effective for the Company beginningidan 1, 2009. The Company is assessing the potémpact that the adoption of FSP
FAS 142-3 will have on the useful lives of its inggble assets but does not expect it to have ariabitepact on its consolidated results of
operations and financial condition.
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Management does not believe that any atwantly issued, but not yet effective, accounstamdards if currently adopted would have a
material effect on the accompanying financial stegets.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The financial statements required by tteémiare attached to this Annual Report on Form Ife#inning on Page F-1.
Iltem 9A(T) Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedire

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the SéesrExchange Act of 1934, as of the end of théogesovered by this Annual report, we
carried out an evaluation, under the supervisiahwith the participation of our Chief Executive @#r and our chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and praoesias of December 31, 2008. Our management hakided, based on their evaluation,
as of the end of the period covered by this remant,disclosure controls and procedures were éffeets of December 31, 2008 to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in tgorts we file or submit under the Exchange Acetorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in tlee&ities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control overdficial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsiblestablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting. As defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act, intecwltrol over financial reporting is a process des@yby, or under the supervision of , a
company's principal executive and principal finahoifficers and effected by a company's board fadors, management and other personnel,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thdilélreof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies It includes those policies and procedures th

a) Pertain to the maintenance of rectrdsin reasonable detail accurately and fairfiect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of a company;

b) Provide reasonable assurance thaddrdions are recorded as necessary to permitratapaof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of a emypre being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amthdlard of directors of the company; and

c) Provide reasonable assurance ragamtevention or timely detection of unauthorizedusition, use or deposition of a
company's assets that could have a material affeits financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations, inggrcontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management has used theaegablished in "Internal Control-IntegratedrReavork” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgiBOSO") to evaluate the effectiveness of the Canyfs internal control over financial
reporting. Management has selected the COSO frankefaoits evaluation as it is a control framewaeécognized by the SEC and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board, that is fremfibias, permits reasonably consistent qualitative quantitative measurement of the
Company's internal
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controls, is sufficiently complete so that relevaontrols are not omitted, and is relevant to aadwation of internal controls over financial
reporting.

Based on our assessment, management helsaea that our internal control over financial @gng, based on criteria established in
“Internal Control-Integrated Framework" issued l9 S0 was effective as of December 31, 2008 anchfoyéar then ended.

The annual report does not include an tatties report of our registered public accountiimgnfregarding internal control over financial
reporting. Our management's report was not subjegttestation by our registered public accountimg pursuant to temporary rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permib gsdvide only our management's report in this ahneport.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Retngy

There was no change in our internal cordv@lr financial reporting that occurred during fberth quarter that has materially affected, «
reasonably likely to materially affect, our inteFgantrol over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

The information required by this Item wik contained in our definitive Proxy Statementediked with the SEC in connection with our
2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2008 Rr8xatement”) under the captions "Election of Diveg," "Board of Directors Meetings
and Committees of the Board," "Executive Officeagtl "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportirggrpliance" and is incorporated het
by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that appdi all our directors, officers and employees Tlode of Ethics is publicly available on our
website atvww.summerinfant.com . Amendments to the Code of Ethics and any graatwéiver from a provision of the Code of Ethics
requiring disclosure under applicable SEC and Nasdkes will be disclosed on our website.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item vk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Executive Compensation”
contained in our 2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Métrs

The information required by this item Wik incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Ownership of Summer
Infant, Inc. Common Stock" contained in our 2008XyrStatement.

Equity Compensation Plan Informatis

The following table summarizes share infation, as of December 31, 2008, for our equity censation plans, including the 2006
Performance Equity Plan.

Number of
Number of Common Shares
Common Shares Available for
to Be Issued Weighted Average Future Issuance
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Plan Category Outstanding Options  Outstanding Options ~ Compensation Plans(1
Equity compensation plans approved by stockhol 999,20( $ 5.2¢ 2,000,80!
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre
Total 999,20( $ 5.2t 2,000,80!

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transaains and Director Independence

The information required by this item wakk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” contained in our 2008 Prdayethent.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item waik incorporated by reference from the informatiader the captions "Audit Fees", "Audit-
Related Fees," "Tax Fees," "All Other Fees" an@-Rpproval Policies and Procedures" contained in2008 Proxy Statement.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summer Infant, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheets of Summer Infant, Inc. and Siabigisl as of December 31, 2008 and
2007, and the related consolidated statementscofiie, stockholders' equity and cash flows for thary then ended. These financial staten
are the responsibility of the Company's manageng@umt.responsibility is to express an opinion orsthénancial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of DecerBbeP008 and 2007, and the results of their ofmersiand their cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with U.S. generally acedccounting principles.

We were not engaged to examine managensssestion about the effectiveness of Summer lisfamternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2008 included in Marfagement’'s Report on Internal Control Over Fir@riReporting” and, accordingly, we
not express an opinion thereon.

/sl MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP

New York, New York
March 24, 200¢
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Note that all dollar amounts presentedhanttible below are in thousands of U.S. dollarsgpikshare amounts and par value per share.

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and Cash Equivalel $ 98t $ 1,771
Trade Receivables, net of allowance for doubtfebaats of $335 and $124 at December 31, 200¢
2007, respectivel 29,35¢ 21,24*
Inventory 30,88: 19,32]
Prepaids and Other Current Ass 1,49t 97C
Deferred Tax Assel 602 134
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 63,32¢ 43,44
Property and Equipment, n 11,212 9,27¢
Goodwill 40,45: 30,82(
Other Intangible Assets, n 15,13( 9,46:
Other Assets, n¢ 41€ 21¢€
TOTAL ASSETS $ 130,53t $ 93,22¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Line of Credit and Current Portion of Lc-Term Debi $ 1,654 17,85¢
Accounts Payable and Accrued Exper 23,04 17,57¢
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 24,69¢ 35,43(
Long-term Debt, less current portis 42,275 3,971
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,34¢ 54¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES 68,32¢ 39,95¢
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock $.0001 par value, issued and outstgridi,055,782 and 13,907,892 at December 31,
and 2007, respective 1 1
Additional Paic-in Capital 54,09t 49,07¢
Retained Earning 8,997 4,09t
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lt (882 96
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 62,21 53,27(
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 130,53 $ 93,22t

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

Note that all dollar amounts presentedateible and the notes to the table below areonstiinds of U.S. dollars, except share and per
share amounts.

For the year ended
December 31, 20C December 31, 20C

Net revenue $ 132,36¢ $ 68,117
Cost of goods sol 85,51« 42,35¢
Gross profi 46,85t 25,76:
Selling, general and administrative expense 34,61 20,01¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,90: 1,18(C

Net operating incom 9,33¢ 4,56t
Interest income (expense), | (2,059 22¢

Income before provision for income tay 7,28( 4,79:
Income tax expens 2,37¢ 1,67¢

Net income $ 490: $ 3,11¢
Net income per share ba $ 03: $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares outstanding k 14,734,29 13,426,00
Net income per share diluti $ 03¢ $ 0.2
Weighted average shares outstanding dil 14,734,29 13,507,09

a) Includes non-cash stock option compensation expein$860 and $376 for the years ended Decembe2®1g, and December 31,

2007, respectively. Also includes deal-related f&fe214 for the year ended December 31, 2008.
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Note that all dollar amounts presentechndttached table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

For the year ended

December 31  December 31
2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 490z $ 311t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashl is@perating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,90z 1,18(C
Stoclk-based compensatic 36C 37€
Deferred income taxe 83¢ 928
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effeEtcquisitions

Increase in accounts receiva (4,449 (9,11%)

Increase in inventor (6,73¢) (9,26€)

Decrease (increase) in prepaids and other curssets 33€ (3D

Increase in other ass¢ (200)

Increase in accounts payable and accrued exp 2,027 8,60:
Net cash used in operating activit (16) (4,21%)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisitions of property and equipme (3,869 (3,570
Acquisitions of other intangible ass (1,682)
Acquisitions of Basic Comfort, Inc., Kiddopotamus@mpany (2008) and Summer Infant, Inc. (2007) ofietsh

acquired of $61 and $867, respectiv (15,95%) (24,37))
Net cash used in investing activiti (21,509 (27,94))
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net repayments on line of cre — (14,997
Net borrowings on line of credit and payments dreoteb 21,71¢ 18,66¢
Redemptions of common sto (6,887%)
Redemption of warran (15,059
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 21,71« (18,265
Effect on exchange rate changes on cash and casrakts (97¢) 98
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (783 (50,329
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,771 52,09/
Cash and cash equivalents at end of- $ 98¢ ¢ 1,771
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year for inter $ 1,90¢ $ 89t
Cash paid during the year for income ta $ 142t $ 70C
Non cash investing/financing activiti
Issuance of common stock in conjunction with thguésitions of Basic Comfort, Inc., Kiddopotamus a@ampany

(2008), and Summer Infant, Inc. (2007), respedii $ 4,657 $ 20,18:
Capital lease obligations incurr $ 38C % —

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note that all dollar amounts presentechadttached table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

Commons Stock

Additional Accumulated Total

Retainec Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders

Shares Amount EZ;Jditg]I Earnings Income (Loss) Income Equity

Balance at December 31, 20C 11,200,00 $ 1 $50,46:$ 98C $ 51,44:

Acquisition of Summer Infant, Inc 3,916,66 20,18: 20,18:

Redemption of share (1,208,77) (6,889 (6,887%)

Redemption of warran (15,059 (15,059

Stock based compensati 37€ 37¢€

Net income for the ye: 3,11¢ $ 3,11t

Foreign currency translation adjustn $ 96 96

Total comprehensive incon $ 3,211 3,211
Balance at December 31, 20C 13,907,89 $ 1 $49,07¢ $4,09t $ 96 $ 53,27(

Acquisition of Basic Comfor 450,00( 1,77¢ 1,77¢

Acquisition of Kiddopotamu 697,89( 2,87¢ 2,87¢

Stock based compensati 36C 36C

Net income for the ye: 4,902 4,902

Foreign currency translation adjustnr (978 (97¢)

Total comprehensive incon $ 3,92¢ 3,924
Balance at December 31, 20C 15,055,78 $ 1 $54,09t $8,997 $ (882 $ 62,21

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Acquisition of Summer Infant, Inc. by KBL Healtre#@cquisition Corp. |

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$bf Reorganization, dated as of September B @@@quisition Agreement"), KBL
Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il ("KBL"), and its why owned subsidiary, Sl Acquisition Corp. ("Adgition Sub™), consummated a
transaction by which (i) Summer Infant, Inc. ("§Was merged with and into Acquisition Sub anddii)of the outstanding capital stock of
each of Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIE") andvner Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and, collectively,itlv SIl and SIE, the "Targets") was
acquired directly by KBL. As used in this Repohig term "Summer” includes each of the Targets. geslun this Report, the term "Company"
means the registrant on a post-acquisition basis.

Effective upon closing, the Company chanigedame to Summer Infant, Inc. and Sll changedédme to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.
Thus, the Company is now a holding company callethi8er Infant, Inc. operating through its wholly-adhsubsidiaries, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe, Limited, and Soen Infant Asia, Ltd.

At the closing of the acquisition, the Suemratockholders received from the Company an aggesegf $20,000,000 cash and 3,916,667
shares of Company common stock (“Transaction SHaEse Summer stockholders also will be entitleddceive up to an additional
aggregate of 2,500,000 shares of Company commaohk §i6ontingent Shares") in the event that the $as#s price of Company common stock
is equal to or exceeds $8.50 on any twenty (2@)ricadays during any thirty (30) consecutive tradifay period commencing on the three-
month anniversary of the closing of the acquisitioid ending on April 20, 2009. The Summer stockéidalso are entitled to receive cash
payments equal to 50% of the difference betweemsh&BITDA (as defined in the Acquisition Agreemefar the years ended or ending
December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and prescribe@iEBbenchmarks for each of those years of $4,2am,800,000,000 and $15,000,000
respectively. These cash payments shall not ex¢&€90,000 in the aggregate for the three yeararounts were earned for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Holders of 1,208,775 shares of KBL commiatls voted against the acquisition and electedtwvert their shares into a pro rata portion
of the trust fund (approximately $5.69 per shararoaggregate of approximately $6,883,000). The [@2om prior to March 6, 2007 was in the
development stage. Effective upon the acquisitioBwnmer Infant, Inc. the Company is no longer @ettgpmental stage company.

On November 7, 2008, Summer Infant (USAY, kreated a wholly-owned subsidiary called Sumimiant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC").
Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation Rridciples of Consolidatiol

The Consolidated Statement of Income feryiiar ended December 31, 2007 consists of thedpdm March 6, 2007 through
December 31, 2007 for Summer plus the full yeanlte®f KBL. The acquisition of Summer by KBL ocoed on March 6, 2007, and therefore
the results of Summer are included from that daedrd.

It is the Company's policy to prepare itgfcial statements on the accrual basis of acoayirt conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amefite consolidated financial statements includeatteunts of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts anghsactions have been eliminated in the consaotidati
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Revenue Recognitic

The Company follows the guidance of theusiEes and Exchange Commission' ("SEC") Staff Aeting Bulletin 104 for revenue
recognition. In general, the Company records regemiben all of the following occur: persuasive evice of an arrangement exists, product
delivery has occurred, the sales price to the oustads fixed or determinable, and collectabilityéasonably assured. Sales are recorded net of
provisions for returns and allowances, customeradiats, and other sales related discounts. The @oynipases its estimates for discounts,
returns and allowances on negotiated customer tenthdiistorical experience. Customers do not hia@eigjht to return products unless the
products are defective. The Company records a tienuaf sales for estimated future defective prddieductions based on historical
experience.

Sales incentives or other consideratiorigilty the Company to customers that are considefedtments of the selling price of its
products, such as allowances and product placef@esitare reflected as reductions of revenue. Satestives and other consideration that
represent costs incurred by the Company for assetsrvices received, such as the appearance Gfdimpany's products in a customer's
national circular ad, are reflected as selling aradtketing expenses in the accompanying stateméntsame.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fleash and cash equivalents include money markeuats and investments with an original
maturity of three months or less. At times, the @any possesses cash balances in excess of fedamlhed limits.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are reported at thestanting unpaid principal balances reduced by lawahce for doubtful accounts. The Company
estimates doubtful accounts based on historicaldedds, factors related to specific customersitghid pay and current economic trends. The
Company writes off accounts receivable againsatlmevance when a balance is determined to be wextdile.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of finished goods #nstated at the lower of cost using the firstiirst-out (FIFO) method, or market (net
realizable value). The Company regularly revievesvsinoving and excess inventories, and writes downritorées to net realizable value if t
ultimate expected proceeds from the disposals eésxinventory are less than the carrying costefiterchandise.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are recorded at ¢bst Company owns the molds used in the productiois products by third party
manufacturers. Capitalized mold costs include ciostsrred for the pre-production design and develept of the molds.

Depreciation is provided over the estimateeful lives of the respective assets using egtrarght-line or accelerated methods.

F-8




Table of Contents

SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

The Company reviews lotiged assets for impairment whenever events or gésiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable. An assebisidered to be impaired when its carrying arhexoeeds the sum of the undiscounted
future net cash flows expected to result from tbe of the asset and its eventual disposition. Lowggh assets include property and equipment.
The amount of impairment loss, if any, is charggdhe Company to current operations. For eacheftars ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, no such impairment existed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for Goodwill and Oth&ngible Assets in accordance with Financialdectting Standards Board SFAS
No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetSFAS 142 requires that goodwill and intangible tssteat have indefinite useful lives no
longer be subject to amortization and be testéebat annually for impairment. Intangible assets tave useful lives are amortized over such
lives on a straight-line basis.

Summer Infant Acquisition

The following table summarizes the fairued of the assets acquired and liabilities asswahtte date of acquisition of Summer by KBL.
The fair values of intangible assets acquired wétained through a third party valuation.

(In Thousands;
Accounts receivabl $ 12,13(
Inventory 10,06:
Other current asse 1,50(
Property and equipme 6,884
Brand Name 8,40(
Patents 1,30(
Goodwiill 30,83:
Other Asset: 164
Total assets acquire 71,27:
Debt 18,82:
Other liabilities assume 8,83¢
Total liabilities assume 27,65¢
Net assets acquire $ 43,61

Basic Comfort Acquisitio

On March 31, 2008, through Summer (USA8, @ompany acquired substantially all of the asseBasic Comfort, Inc. ("Basic"), a
leading manufacturer and supplier of infant coméontl safety products, including infant sleep posérs, infant head supports and portable
changing pads. The acquisition price was approxmat4,700,000 in cash and 450,000 shares of wirrgd Summer common stock (which
were valued at $1,777,500 using the March 31, 20@8ing price of $3.95). The
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

cash portion of the purchase price was funded tirdorrowings under the Company's credit facilyportion of the common stock issued at
closing was deposited into escrow to secure the@osing indemnification obligations of the Basiockholders. The owners of Basic can
receive additional payments based on the achieveofieertain EBITDA targets for the year ended Magd, 2009.

The following table summarizes the fairued of the assets acquired and liabilities asswah#te date of acquisition of Basic by Summer:

(In Thousands;
Trade receivable $ 1,38¢
Inventory 1,55¢
Other Current Asse 121
Property and equipme 152
Other Intangible Asse 614
Goodwiill 4,76¢
Deferred tax benefit 20C
Total assets require 8,79¢
Total liabilities assume 1,85¢
Net assets acquire $ 6,94¢

Kiddopotamus Acquisitio

On April 18, 2008, the Company, through $en USA, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Elefthe "Merger Agreement"), among
Summer USA, Kiddo Acquisition Co., Inc., a whollywoed subsidiary of Summer USA ("Merger Sub"), Kiddamus & Company
("Kiddopotamus"), J. Chris Snedeker, Kristen PeteiSnedeker and Thomas K. Manning, under whiclCrapany acquired Kiddopotamus
leading manufacturer and supplier of infant nurserawel and feeding accessories. Pursuant teetiestof the Merger Agreement, on April 18,
2008, Merger Sub merged with and into Kiddopotamaith Kiddopotamus continuing as the surviving nfthe "Merger"). As a result of the
Merger, Kiddopotamus became an indirect, wholly-ed/subsidiary of the Company.

Under the merger agreement, the total @aselprice paid by the Company to the holders oflpdtamus common and preferred stock,
plus the payment of various closing expenses, Wass$0,000. Of the total purchase price, approeiyat9,600,000 was paid in cash, and
approximately $2,900,000 was paid by the issuah€&®16,890 unregistered shares of the Company's amstock at $4.126 per share, which
represented the ten day trading average endingeotiading day two business days prior to the otpsif the merger. Each holder of
Kiddopotamus common and preferred stock (other th&hris Snedeker and Kristen Peterson Snedéiet'Rrincipal Stockholders") elected
to receive their allocation of the total net pusda@rice in cash. As required by the Merger Agregntbe Principal Stockholders received one
half of their allocation of the total net purchgsi&e in common stock of the Company and one natkish.

The Company funded the cash portion otdked net purchase price with borrowings undesésured credit facilities. Approximately 1
of the total net purchase price was depositeddrogsto secure the post-closing indemnificationigdtions of the former Kiddopotamus
stockholders, including the Principal Stockholdersder the terms of the agreement.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

The following table summarizes the fairued of the assets acquired and liabilities asswah#te date of acquisition of Kiddopotamus by
Summer:

(In Thousands;
Trade receivable $ 2,28¢
Inventory 3,25¢
Other Asset: 74C
Property and equipme 48
Trade name and other intangible as 3,71C
Goodwill 4,85(
Deferred tax benefit 30&
Total assets acquire 15,19¢
Total liabilities assume 1,52¢
Net assets acquire $ 13,67

The pro forma effect on net revenues, egsjiand diluted earnings per share amounts foyehes ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
assuming the Basic Comfort and Kiddopotamus traitsechad closed on January 1, 2007, are as follows

2008 2007
Net revenues $ 138,298,00 $ 91,128,00
Net income: $ 5,369,000 $ 4,482,00i
Earnings per share: dilutt $0.36 per shal  $0.31 per sha

Income taxe

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company éetbthe provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 4BI{ 48"), "Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxe—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 189N 48 provides detailed guidance for the finanstatement recognition,
measurement and disclosure of uncertain tax paositiecognized in the financial statements in aammed with SFAS No. 109. Tax positions
must meet a "more-likely-than-not" recognition 8ireld at the effective date to be recognized uperatioption of FIN 48 and in subsequent
periods. Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the Compaay ho unrecognized tax benefits.

Income taxes are computed using the asskliability method of accounting. Under the asaad liability method, a deferred tax asset or
liability is recognized for estimated future tafeets attributable to temporary differences andyéarwards. The measurement of deferred
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation alo@aif necessary, to recognize future tax benefitg to the extent, based on available
evidence; it is more likely than not such benefiis be realized. The Company recognizes interest genalties, if any, related to uncertain tax
positions in selling, general and administrativpenses. No interest and penalties related to waindetx positions were accrued at
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The tax years 2004 through 2007 remain dpexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company operates. The
Company expects no material changes to unrecogtaxeubsitions within the next twelve months.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Translation of Foreign Currencies

The assets and liabilities of the CompaByspean and Asian operations have been transtated).S. dollars at yearnd exchange rat
All assets and liabilities of the Company's foredgffiliates are translated into U.S. dollars ateékehange rate in effect at the end of the year
and the income and expense accounts of thesagdfilhave been translated at average rates pngvdiliing each respective year. Resulting
translation adjustments are made to a separateawenpof stockholders' equity within accumulatdtkotcomprehensive income (loss).

Shipping Costs

Shipping costs are included in selling exg@s and amounted to approximately $1,882,000 4/4®$,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Advertising Cost

The Company charges advertising costs pemse as incurred. Advertising expense, which stsprimarily of promotional and
cooperative advertising allowances provided toamst's, was approximately $8,749,000 and $5,145f00the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Selling Expenses

The primary components of selling expemséuide shipping costs, as well as commissions ayalty based payments to third party
vendors.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect certain reported amounts and diaoéss Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Net Income Per Shal

Basic earnings per share for the Compagpnsputed by dividing net income by the weightedrage number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. The shares usednmpating diluted earnings per share include 0 exjaivt shares from warrants since they
were anti-dilutive in both years ended December2BD8 and 2007. Options to purchase 999,200, @&%5100 shares of the Company's
common stock were not included in the calculatthre to the fact that these options were anti-diéutor the years ended December 31, 2008,
and 2007.

New Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements.”" SFAS No. 157 dsfifair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally gqgted accounting principles and expands disclosabrest fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncésrthat require or permit fair value measuremeand, accordingly, does not require ¢
new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effedor fiscal years beginning after November 1802. Effective January 1, 2008, the
Company adopted SFAS 157 for its financial assets
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

and liabilities. The adoption of SFAS 157 did natvl a material impact on the Company's financialtjpm or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatemielRinancial Accounting Standards No. 141(R), "fRess Combinations"”, or SFAS No. 141
(R). This statement establishes principles andirepents for how the acquirer of a business reaagnand measures in its financial staterr
the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilitisstaned, and any non-controlling interest in theuaeg. SFAS No. 141(R) also provides
guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwijuired in the business combination and detesnit®&t information to disclose to
enable users of the financial statements to evaliigt nature and financial effects of the busiwessbination. The provisions of SFAS No. 141
(R) are effective for financial statements issuadfiscal years beginning after December 15, 200& Company will adopt this statement, as
applicable on January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatemielRinancial Accounting Standards No. 160, "Nomcolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements-An Amendment to Accountingedesh Bulletin ("ARB") No. 51", or SFAS No. 160. i§lstatement amends ARB
No. 51, "Consolidated Financial Statements", taldi&h accounting and reporting standards for tim-controlling interest in a subsidiary and
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This staat also amends certain of ARB No. 51's consatidgirocedures for consistency with the
requirements of SFAS No. 141(R). In addition, S 160 also includes expanded disclosure requinehregarding interests of the parent
and its non-controlling interest. The provisionsS6TAS No. 160 are effective for financial statersassued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company will adopt thisestant, as applicable, on January 1, 2009.

In February 2008, the FASB issued Staffittws("FSP") No. 157-1 and FSP No. FSP 157-2. N8P157-1 removes certain leasing
transactions from the scope of SFAS No. 157. FSP1N8-2 partially defers the effective date of SFA& 157 for one year for certain
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitieattare recognized at fair value on a nonrecurragjsh Under FSP No. 157-2, the effective date
for non-financial assets and liabilities that aeagnized at the fair value on a nonrecurring bagide for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. FSP No. -2 is effective for the Company of January 1, 2008 Company is assessing the potential impaciabting
FSP No. 157-2, but does not believe that the adoptill have a significant impact on the Comparmgasolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. F-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intabtg Assets" ("FSP FAS 142-3"). FSP
FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be coresida developing renewal or extension assumptizes to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142)ddwill and Other Intangible assefSFAS No. 142"). The intent of the position is to
improve the consistency between the useful lifa cécognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 1dateperiod of expected cash flows u
to measure the fair value of the asset under SFASLAL (R). FSP FAS 142-3 is effective for fiscahys beginning after December 15, 2008
and is effective for the Company January 1, 200@& Company is assessing the potential impact tiesadoption of FSP FAS 142-3 will have
on the useful lives of its intangible assets buigdoot expect it to have a material impact onatssolidated results of operations and financial
condition.

The Company does not believe that any a#hently issued, but not yet effective accounsitejdards will have a material effect on the
Company's consolidated financial position, resoitsperations, or cash flows.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Certain items as of and for the year eridedember 31, 2007 have been reclassified to confdtinthe current year presentation.
2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consithefollowing:

December Depreciation/
Amortization
2008 2007 Period
(In Thousands)
Computel $ 1465 $ 75€ 5 year:
Tools and dies and Prototyp 7,60¢ 4,502 1-5 year
Building 4,15¢ 4,21z 30 year
Other 1,52¢ 74¢ various
14,75¢ 10,23
Less accumulated depreciati 3,541 944
Property and Equipment, n $11,21: $ 9,27¢

Property and equipment includes amountsieed under capital leases of approximately $827 &td $447,000 at December 31, 2008
2007, respectively, with related accumulated deatien of approximately $164,000 and $125,000, eeipely. Depreciation is included in
general and administrative expenses in the accoyimaoonsolidated statements of income.

3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Gooduwill is tested for impairment on an aahbasis and more frequently if facts and circameés indicate goodwill carrying values
exceed estimated fair values. Because the Compasfully integrated its acquisitions, it has detieed that it has only one reporting unit for
purposes of testing for goodwill impairment. Basedhe impairment tests performed, there was naimpent of goodwill in 2008 or 2007.

The change in goodwill during the yearsezhBecember 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively wédlaws (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ —
Acquisition of Summer Infant, Inc 30,82(
Balance at December 31, 20 30,82(
Acquisition of Basic Comfor 4,76¢
Acquisition of Kiddopotamu 4,85(
Other addition: 13
Balance at December 31, 20 $40,45:
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3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Intangible asset

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31, Amortization
2008 2007 Period
(In Thousands)
Brand Name: $10,90(C $8,40C Indefinite
Patents and Licens: 1,30C 1,30C 5 year
Customer List: 1,54: —  Indefinite
Other Intangible: 1,94¢ — 510 year
15,69:  9,70(
Less: Accumulated Amortizatic (562) 237)
Intangible Assets, nt $15,13( $9,46:

The amortization period for the intangibbsets ranges from 5 to 10 years for those assthdve an estimated life; certain of the assets
have indefinite lives. There was no impairmenténgible assets in 2008 or 2007.

Amortization expense amounted to $390,0@D%237,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002@07, respectively. Estimated
amortization expense for the next five years ifolsws:

Year ending December 31 (In Thousands'
2009 $ 465
2010 465
2011 465
2012 22¢
2013 20C

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expensesstarighe following:

December 31

2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Accounts payabl $14,69¢ $12,20:
Customer advertising and allowan 2,652 1,757
Accrued purchases of inventc 3,217 874
Other (none in excess of 5% of current liabiliti 2,48z 2,74(
Total $23,04f $17,57:

5. DEBT
New Credit Facilities

On April 10, 2008, the Company entered imto new three-year secured credit facilities (fbean Agreement") with Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, and each of the ficial
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5. DEBT (Continued)

institutions a signatory to the Loan Agreement. Than Agreement provides for a $36,000,000 workiapital revolving credit facility and a

$10,000,000 non-restoring acquisition credit fagilThe new credit facilities mature on June 30, 20T he acquisition credit facility has been
utilized in its entirety as of December 31, 200Be amount outstanding on the working capital remgi\credit facility at December 31, 2008

was $29,676,000.

Aggregate maturities of long term debttesdieto this note are as follows:

(In Thousands'

Year ending December { 2009 $ 1,33¢
2010 2,00(
2011 36,34
Total $ 39,67¢

The Company and its subsidiaries, Summfant(USA), Inc. Summer Infant Europe Limited, Susrninfant Asia Limited and Summer
Infant Canada, Limited are the borrowers underltbizn Agreement. These new credit facilities replde Company's prior line of credit and
are being used principally to fund growth opportiesi and for working capital purposes. This créaliility is secured by substantially all of t
assets of the Company.

The Company's ability to borrow under tlteah Agreement is subject to its ongoing compliamith a number of financial and other
covenants, including the following: (i) that ther@pany and its subsidiaries maintain a net worth5af,000,000 plus the sum of 50% of net
income earned in each fiscal year, (ii) that thenBany and its subsidiaries maintain a ratio ofltutaded debt to EBITDA of not greater than
3.50:1.00, and (iii) that the Company and its stilasies maintain a ratio of operating cash flovdédbt service of not less than 1.25:1,00. In
addition, if the Company's ratio of total fundedti® EBITDA is greater than 3.25:1.00 as of Deceni, 2008, the total commitment
amount under the working capital revolving creditifity will reduce by $4,000,000 on March 31, 206@rthermore, if the Company's ratio of
total funded debt to EBITDA is greater than 3.2801for any fiscal year, the aggregate amount ttet be borrowed under the Loan
Agreement will be determined by reference to adowwsimg base.

These new credit facilities bear interést Hoating rate based on a spread over LIBORiranfyom 150 basis points to 200 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of the Company's totadiéaihdebt to EBITDA. As of December 31, 2008, the om these credit facilities ranged
between 1.95% and 4.42%. In addition, these neditdieilities have an unused line fee based oruthesed amount of the credit facilities
equal to 25 basis points.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoragents of default, including a cross default primvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the loan Agreémexy be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatintnsmlvency and receivership, all outstanding oltigges become due and payable.

At December 31, 2007, there was $17,591¢@6tanding on the Company's prior line of créafility.

F-16




Table of Contents

SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
5. DEBT (Continued)
Amendment to Construction Lo

In connection with the Company's constarctif its principal offices in Woonsocket, Rhodkaisl, the Company previously assumed all
obligations of Faith Realty under a $4,000,000 @uiction Loan between Faith Realty and Bank of AicgerN.A. (the "Real Estate Loan"). In
connection with the new credit facilities descrilzdubve, the Company and Bank of America, N.A. aredrttie Real Estate Loan to include a
cross default provision with these new credit ftes.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company hadusstanding term loan due in 2017 of approxima$&)859,000 related to the construction
of its new corporate headquarters/distribution eenthich was completed in 2007. The interest hatebeen fixed at 7.06% and the building is
the collateral for the note. The loan requires rhiynpayments of principal and interest. Aggregatgurities of long term debt related to this
note are as follows:

(In Thousands
Year ending December { 2009 $ 10&
2010 112
2011 121
2012 13C
2013 142
Thereaftel 3,24¢
$ 3,85¢
6. INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense (benefit) is summaraztbliows:
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 36 $ 81t
Foreign 1,20¢ 34z
State and Loce 313 234
Total Current 1,55¢ 1,391
Deferred (primarily federal 82t 287
Total expens:i $2,37¢ $1,67¢
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6. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The tax effects of temporary differencest tomprise the deferred tax liabilities and asasgsas follows:

2008 2007
(In thousands)

Assets (Liabilities’
Deferred tax ass-current:

Accounts receivable and inventory reser $ 602 $134
Net deferred tax as«-current 602 134
Deferred tax (liability) ass-nor-current: 1,346

Intangible assel (92)

Property, plant and equipme (457)
Net deferred tax (liability) ass-nor-current: 1,348 (54¢)
Net deferred income tax asset (liabili $ (746) $(414)

The following reconciles the income tax empe (benefit) at the U.S. federal income tax giafurate to that in the consolidated financial
statements:

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Tax expense at statutory r: $2,475  $1,59¢
State income taxes, net of U.S. federal incomééaefit 28C 26¢
Tax credits (300) (300
Non-deductible expenst 31 13€
Other (20§) (25
Total expensi $2,37¢  $1,67¢

7. STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has granted stock options uitsl@006 Performance Equity Plan ("2006 Plan")deinthe 2006 Plan, awards may be
granted to participants in the form of Non-Quadfigtock Options, Incentive Stock Options, Restd@&@ock, Deferred Stock, Stock Reload
Options and other stock-based awards. Subjecktprbvisions of the plan, awards may be grantezhiployees, officers, directors, advisors
and consultants who are deemed to have render@ able to render significant services to us orsabsidiaries and who are deemed to have
contributed or to have the potential to contribioteur success. As discussed in Note 1, Summa8jgoiificant Accounting Policies—New
Accounting Pronouncements, effective January 1628® Company adopted the fair value recognitimvigions of SFAS 123(R), using the
modified prospective transition method. The adaptd SFAS 123(R) resulted in share-based compamsatipense for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 of $360,000 and $376r86pectively. Stock based compensation experngeligied in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

The fair value of each option award isreatied on the date of grant using the Black-Schoi¢isn valuation model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. BecabseGompany's
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7. STOCK OPTIONS (Continued)

common shares have only traded publicly since A5, expected volatility for the year ended Delsen81, 2008 is estimated based on an
arithmetic average of the volatility of four pulljigraded companies that operate in Summer's inglastsell into similar markets. Summer has
insufficient history by which to estimate the exggetterm of the options, but used an estimate fantg of "plain vanilla” stock options based
on a formula prescribed by the Securities and Bxgaa&Commission's Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1B@cause Summer's employee stock
options have characteristics significantly diffaréom those of traded options and because changbs subjective input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate, in mag@agnt's opinion, the existing models do not necigsaovide a reliable single measure of
fair value of its stock options.

The following table summarizes the assuomgtiused for options granted during the year emaedmber 31, 2007. There were no option
grants during the year ended December 31, 2008.

Expected life (in years 3.5t05.!
Risk-free interest rat 4.50% and 4.75'
Volatility 25.0%
Dividend yield 0

A summary of the status of the Companytgoap as of December 31, 2008 and changes duregear then ended is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Number Of Exercise
Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of ye 1,055,000 $ 5.27
Grantec — —
Cancelec (55,800 $ 5.2C
Outstanding at end of ye 999,20( $ 5.2t
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 374,80( $ 5.2%
The aggregate intrinsic value of optiontstanding at December 31, 2008 was $0.
The following table summarizes informatadmout stock options at December 31, 2008:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Remaining
Contractual Average Average
Number Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding  Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
$5.25 500,00( 8.2 $ 5.2t 125,000 $ 5.2t
$5.20 466,00( 85 $ 52C 0 $ 5.2C
$5.21 33,20( 8.8 $ 5.21 0 $ 521
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Remaining
Number of  Grant Date  Contractual

Options Fair Value Life
Non-Vested options at December 31, 2( 930,00 $ 1.57 9.5
— 3 — —
Options Vestel 249,80( $ 1.5¢ 8.2
Options forfeitec (55,800 1.7z 8.5
Non-Vested options at December 31, 2( 624,40 $ 1.57 8.5

As of December 31, 2008, there was apprateiy $983,000 of unrecognized compensation cdeterd to norvested stock option awar
which is expected to be recognized over a remaiwigighted-average vesting period of 2.5 years.toted fair value of options vested during
the year ended December 31, 2008 was approximbs&$,000.

8. WARRANTS

The Company had 18,400,000 redeemable constock purchase warrants (the "Warrants") outstanat December 31, 2006. Each
Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one sHateromon stock at an exercise price of $5.00 pareshThe Warrants expire in April 2009.
The Warrants are redeemable at a price of $0.0Waerant, only in the event that the last salegdtthe common stock is at least $8.50 per
share for any 20 trading days within a 30 tradiag geriod. In November, 2007, the Company complatezhder offer to all warrant holders
purchase each warrant for $1.00. The total numbeaaants tendered was 14,766,047. The Compary asembination of cash on hand
amounts available under its line of credit to find tender offer. The amount paid to the warratddrs who tendered their warrants was
charged to additional paid-in capital. At DecemB&r 2008, total warrants outstanding were 3,633,953

9. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Company leases various equipment uretgtal leases which expire during 2009 and 2011.
The leases require monthly payments ofggad and interest, imputed at interest rates ranfiom 3% to 19% per annum.

The capital lease liability balance of appmately $398,000 and $288,000 is included iniliéss on the consolidated balance sheets i
December 31, 2008 and 2007, (of which approxim&i2ly5,000 and $120,000 is included in long-ternt,datd the balance is in current
liabilities). The minimum future lease paymentgluding principal and interest, are approximatet$4,000 and $265,000, respectively.

10. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

Summer Infant (USA), Inc maintains a defimentribution salary deferral plan (the Plan) un8lection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. All employees who meet the Plan's eligibildgguirements can participate. Employees may &ettake contributions up to 25% of their
compensation. In 2007, the Company adopted a nmgtgian which was funded throughout the year. Reryears ended December 31, 2008
and 2007, the Company recorded 401(k) matchingresgef $116,000 and $68,000, respectively.
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11. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Sales to two customers comprised approxini8% and 10% of net sales for the year ende@iber 31, 2008, and 42% and 15% for
December 31, 2007, respectively. Amounts due floese customers comprised approximately 63% andd@1fade receivables at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Royalty Commitmen

Summer Infant (USA), Inc has entered iradaus license agreements with third parties ferube of product designs and trade names for
the products manufactured by the Company. Theseawnts have termination dates through August,.ZRdgalty expense under these
licensing agreements for the years ended Decendh@088 and 2007 were approximately $214,000 ad® 800, respectively.

Customer Agreements

The Company enters into annual agreemeititsite’ customers in the normal course of busin€esse agreements define the terms of
product sales including in some instances cooperativertising costs and product return privile@esdefective products only) or defective
allowances (which are based upon historical expe€ee These contracts are generally annual in @aod obligate the Company only as to
products actually sold to the customer.

License Agreements and Lease Commitrr

During 2005, Summer Infant (USA), Inc eetiinto formal contracts with providers of longtdisce communications, electronic data
interchange services, telephone and communicatjoipment, and computer equipment. These contradtseiaggregate represent minimum
monthly payments of approximately $2,000 which exgit various times through October 2009.

Summer Infant (USA) leases an office uraléree-year agreement which requires monthly paysref approximately $3,000 through
September 2010.

Summer (USA) leases certain vehicles undercancelable operating lease agreements. Theseslare for a three-year term requiring
monthly payments of approximately $3,000 throughilA3011.

SIE leases office space under a non-cableetgerating lease agreement. This lease isfiseayear term through April 2012, and
requires monthly payments of approximately $5,00@ddition, SIE is required to pay its proportitgahare of property taxes.

Summer Infant Canada, Ltd. entered intwexyear lease for office and warehouse space umdeneancelable operating lease agreer
expiring March 2013. The Company is obligated at plthe lease to pay maintenance expenses agwploperty taxes and insurance costs
as defined in the agreement. Monthly paymentshieiinitial year are approximately $14,000 and edeabver the course of the lease term.
Summer Infant Canada Ltd. has the option to refgsvMease for one additional period of five yeander the same terms and conditions.

Summer Infant (USA) entered into a two-yleaise for office space under a non-cancellableatipg lease agreement expiring July 2010.
The company is obligated to pay insurance as [fahto
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

lease. Monthly payments for the initial year arpragimately $15,000, and escalate to approxim&kéby, 545 through the second year. Surr
(USA) has the option to renew this lease for orditemhal period of two years under the same ternts@nditions.

Summer Infant (USA) Inc. entered into afivear lease for office and warehouse space uncmaelable operating lease agreement. The
agreement states, after month 18, there is a 9@eldgd to cancel. Should either party exercisg diption, the agreement shall terminate
180 days after written notice is provided to thieeotparty. After the 90-day period to cancel pasteslease becomes non-cancelable. The
Company is obligated to pay certain common areat@aance charges including insurance and utilidemthly payments for the initial year
are approximately $29,400 and escalate over theseaf the lease term.

During March 2006, Summer (USA) entered imthree-year lease for warehouse space under-eamzelable operating lease agreement
expiring April 2009. The Company is obligated astjphthe lease to pay maintenance expenses agwploperty taxes and insurance cost
defined in the agreement. Monthly payments foriiiteal year are approximately $27,000, and eseatater the course of the lease term.
Summer (USA) has the option to renew this leaséforadditional periods of three years under thmeesterms and conditions.

During September 2007, Summer (USA) entereda two year lease for warehouse space undenaancelable operating lease
agreement expiring in Aug 2009. The Company isgabéid as part of the lease to pay maintenance s@pgeas defined in the agreement.
Monthly payments for the two year agreement areapmately $16,000.

During December 2007, Summer (USA) entémeala three year lease for warehouse space unuan-aancelable operating lease
agreement expiring in February 2011. Summer (USAYligated as part of the lease to pay maintenexggenses as well as property taxes and
insurance costs, as defined in the agreement. Mopélyments for the initial year are approximat®#0,000, and escalate over the course of
the lease term. Summer (USA) has the option towehes lease for one additional period of threergemder the same general terms and
conditions. During November 2007, SIA entered imtiwvo year office lease which requires monthly pegta of $3,000 through October 2009.

Approximate future minimum rental paymeti®e under these leases are as follows:

Year Ending (In Thousands;
December 31, 200 $ 1,707
December 31, 201 1,45¢
December 31, 201 811
December 31, 201 662
December 31, 201 15E&
Total $ 4,79

Rent expense for the year ended Decemh&®B and 2007 totaled approximately $1,923,0@D%664,000, respectively.
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Employment Contrac!

In accordance with UK and EU law, SIE hagpkyment contracts with all employees. In conractvith these contracts, SIE is required
to fund the individual pension contributions ofteém employees at varying rates from 5% to 10%hefémployee's annual salary, as part of
their total compensation package. These pensiomilotions are expensed as incurred. There aremaitiation benefit provisions in these
contracts.

Litigation

The Company is involved in various claims éegal actions arising in the ordinary courseudiness. Management is of the opinion that
the ultimate outcome of these matters would noetematerial adverse impact on the financial pmsitif the Company or the results of its
operations.

13. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Company distributes branded durabley ipabducts throughout the United States, CanadattaUnited Kingdom, and various other
parts of the world.

The following is a table that presentsnegenue by geographic area at December 31, 2008:

December 31,

2008 2007
(In Thousands)

North America $125,01¢ $62,26¢

All Other 7,351 5,85¢

$132,36¢ $68,11:

The following is a table that presentsitatsets by geographic area:

2008 2007
(In Thousands)
North America $127,18¢ $89,64:
Europe 3,27: 3,51¢
Asia 73 68

$130,53! $93,22¢
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Exhibits.

10.1.1** Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Bank ofetica, N.A. and Summer Infant, Inc., Et al, dateulil 10, 2008, as
amended on June 30, 20!

10.2***  Acquisition agreement by and between Kiddopotanmas@ompany and Summer Infant, Inc., dated April268)8.
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906 of the Saat-Oxley Act of 2002)

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906 of the Sai-Oxley Act of 2002)

* Filed herewitr
*x Incorporated by reference to the form 8-K filed g6, 2008

ok Incorporated by reference to the for-K filed April 24, 2008
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sed®or 15 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Ad984, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtieereunto duly authorized on the 25th day ofd&008.

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

By: /s JASON MACARI

Jason Macari
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

In accordance with the Securities Exchahgeof 1934, this report has been signed belowhayfollowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Name Title Date

s/ JASON MACARI Director and Chief Executive Offic

(Principal Executive Officer)

March 25, 200
Jason Macal

s/ JOSEPH DRISCOLL Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

March 25, 200
Joseph Driscol

/sl STEVEN GIBREE

Executive Vice President of Product Development@imdctor March 25, 200
Steven Gibre:

/sl MARTIN FOGELMAN

Director March 25, 200
Martin Fogelmar
/sl MYRA HART
Director March 25, 200
Myra Hart
/s/ ROBERT STEBENNE
Director March 25, 200
Robert Stebenn
/sl RICHARD WENZ
Director March 25, 200

Richard Wen:
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeesincRegistration Statement (No. 333-156725) omF8¢8 of Summer Infant, Inc. of our report
dated March 24, 2009 relating to our audit of tbhesplidated financial statements, which appeahni;Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Summer Infant, Inc. for the year ended DecembeRBQ8.

MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP
New York, New York

March 24, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jason Macari, Chief Executive Officegrtdy that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartFmrm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matgalor omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-fseéhe registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmndedures, or caused such disclosure controlpanwedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aeskepted in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any chairgthe registrant's internal control over financigborting that occurred during the

registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateriadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyindiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeriuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and mdééweaknesses in the design or operation of iralecontrol over financial reporting whis
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information, and,;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materikgtinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 25, 2009 /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macatri
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Joseph Driscoll, Chief Financial Officeertify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartForm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-fsdéhe registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmndedures, or caused such disclosure controlpntedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aeskepted in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any chairgthe registrant's internal control over financigborting that occurred during the

registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateriadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyinfiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temexiuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and mdééweaknesses in the design or operation of iralecontrol over financial reporting whis
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information, and,;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materikgtinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 25, 2009 /sl JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2008 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchex@pmmission on the date hereof, |, Jason Macaief&xecutive Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
(a) or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

March 25, 2009 /s/ JASON MACARI

Jason Macari
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2008 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchex@pmmission on the date hereof, |, Joseph DrisCblief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
(a) or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

March 25, 2009 /sl JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officel
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